
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Matthew Gaskin, Electoral Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422532

E-mail: matthew.gaskin@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 5 July 2018 

A MEETING OF THE

Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee

WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 16 JULY 2018  AT 6.30 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
ABINGDON, OXFORDSHIRE, OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:
Steve Connel (Chairman)
Anthony Dearlove
Will Hall

Tony Harbour
Mocky Khan

Ian White (Vice-
Chairman)

Substitutes
Joan Bland
Stefan Gawrysiak
Toby Newman

David Turner
Vacancy
vacancy

John Walsh

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

2 Minutes (Pages 3 - 5)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee minutes of the meeting held on 14 May 2018 – attached.  

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.  

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

6 Community Governance Review - review of the boundary 
between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish 
(Pages 6 - 10)

To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic which invites the 
committee to make a final decision on the review of the boundary between 
Harpsden and Henley-on-Thames parishes – attached.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee

HELD AT 5.30 PM ON MONDAY 14 MAY 2018

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
ABINGDON, OXFORDSHIRE, OX14 4SB

Present: Ian White (Chairman), Steve Connel, Anthony Dearlove and Mocky Khan

Officers: Susan Baker, Steven Corrigan, Harry Gable and Margaret Reed 

42 Apologies for absence 

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Charles Bailey. No substitute was 
appointed.

43 Minutes 

RESOLVED:
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 30 October 2017 as a correct record and 
agree that the Chairman signs them as such.

44 Declarations of interest 

None.

45 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None.

46 Public participation 

Councillor Ken Arlett, of Henley Town Council, had registered to speak at the meeting on 
the subject of the proposed boundary review between the parishes of Harpsden and 
Henley-on-Thames.

  

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

47 Community Governance Review - review of the boundary between 
Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish 

Councillor Arlett, of Henley-on-Thames Town Council, spoke in support of the proposed 
boundary change for the following reasons:

 Lack of appropriate infrastructure in Harpsden;
 Existing and future residents of Highlands Park identify themselves as being part of 

Henley;
 The proposed boundary change will have no impact on the viability of Harpsden, 

and any loss of electors will be compensated for by future planning developments in 
the parish.

The committee considered the report of the head of legal and democratic on draft 
proposals to amend the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley parish. The 
review had been triggered following a request from Henley-on-Thames Town Council to 
transfer land south of Greys Road from Harpsden parish to Henley parish. 

The committee was advised of a further representation from Harpsden Parish Council. The 
parish council will not be contesting the boundary change but raised the following points: 
 

 The area of AONB to the north of the footprint of the Highlands development is to 
be protected as such;   

 The Town Field to the east of the footprint is to be protected as such; 
 The site of the house known as Treetops must be protected from any development 

as this will only exacerbate the problem of traffic on Gillotts Lane; 
 The transition of the Highlands development into the parish of Henley does not set 

a precedent for any other developments in the parish. Any sizeable development in 
the parish must be taken on its own merit. 

Officers advised that this committee had no power to condition the above matters which 
were largely planning issues. 

The committee agreed to consult on a draft proposal to amend the boundary between 
Harpsden and Henley parishes and to include any properties transferred as part of the 
review in the North ward of Henley-on-Thames Town Council. The committee considered 
that future residents of the proposed development at Highlands Farm will be better served 
as part of Henley parish, that effective and convenient local government is likely to be best 
achieved by the transfer of the area, which will also support the development of coherent 
communities. 

The committee noted that Oxfordshire County Council would be consulted as a boundary 
change would impact on existing county division boundaries.  

RESOLVED:
1. To amend the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish 

south of Greys Road as shown on the map attached to the agenda pack.
2. To include this area in the North Ward of Henley-on-Thames Town Council.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



3

48 Community Governance Review - review of the size of Kidmore 
End Parish Council 

The committee considered the report of the head of legal and democratic which invited it to 
make a final decision in respect the community governance review of the number of parish 
councillors for Kidmore End Parish Council. 

The report recommended reducing the number of parish councillors from 12 to 10, for the 
reasons set out in the report attached to the agenda pack.

There were no public speakers present for this item.

The committee debated the proposal. It was noted that Kidmore End Parish Council were 
supportive of the proposed reduction, in order to better reflect the smaller population of the 
parish following boundary changes.

RESOLVED:
1. To reduce the number of parish councillors for Kidmore End Parish Council from 12 

to 10. 
2. To authorise the head of legal and democratic to make a reorganisation of the 

community governance order to implement the changes agreed by the committee.

The meeting closed at 5.45 pm

Chairman Date

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Community Governance and 
Electoral Issues Committee

Report of head of legal and democratic 
Author: Steven Corrigan
Telephone: 01235 422526
E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk
To: Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee
DATE: 16 July 2018

Community Governance Review – 
review of the boundary between 
Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames 
parish 

Recommendation:

1. To amend the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames 
parish south of Greys Road as shown on the map attached to this report.

2. To include this area in the North Ward of Henley-on-Thames Town Council.

3. To authorise the head of legal and democratic to make a reorganisation of 
community governance order to implement the changes agreed by the 
committee. 

4. To recommend Council to authorise the head of legal and democratic to request 
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England to make related 
alteration orders to change district wards and county divisions to reflect the 
changes made to the parish boundary.

Purpose of Report

1. To invite the committee to make a final decision in respect of its community 
governance review of the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-
Thames parish south of Greys Road currently in Harpsden parish. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



Strategic Objectives 

2. Community governance reviews contribute to the council’s strategic objective of 
building thriving communities.

Background

3. At its meeting on 30 October 2017 this committee agreed to undertake a review of 
the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish to transfer 
land south of Greys Road currently in Harpsden parish to Henley parish in 
response to a request from Henley-on-Thames Town Council.

4. In agreeing to undertake the review the committee had regard to the following 
resolution agreed by Council at its meeting in July 2014 

 that a significant development proposal that sits adjacent to or straddles a 
parish boundary should automatically trigger a community governance review, 
such a review to take place on the inclusion of a site in a document that forms 
part of the approved Local Plan or when planning permission has been granted 
for the development of the site.  

5. The terms of reference for the review were published in March.

6. Harpsden Parish Council did not object to the proposal. Henley-on-Thames Town 
Council supported the proposal. A member of the public sought clarification 
regarding the impact on postal addresses, school catchment areas, highways 
issues and the likelihood of further development. No objections were received or 
alternative proposals suggested.

7. At its meeting on 14 May 2018 the committee agreed a draft proposal to amend 
the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish south of 
Greys Road and to include the area of land in the North Ward of Henley-on-
Thames Town Council. 

Consultation

8. Harpsden Parish Council has not responded to the consultation on the draft 
proposal but did not raise an objection when previously consulted on the issue.

9. Henley-on-Thames Town Council has confirmed its support for the boundary 
change and the proposed warding arrangements.  

10.The Henley Society responded to the consultation to propose an adjustment to the 
boundary change outlined in the consultation document.  They propose that the 
northern boundary, coming westwards from Greys Road, should be drawn close to 
Highlands Lane until the housing on the right hand side, and then should follow the 
rear boundaries of these properties and those of the new development.  They can 
see no justification for including the land to the north of the new development in the 
transfer.

11.Whilst this proposal would restrict the boundary change to the Highlands Farm site 
and existing properties on Highlands Lane it would result in the isolation of the 
area from Henley-on-Thames separating it from Henley-on-Thames by a field. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Officers consider that the committee’s proposed boundary, whilst extending the 
area to the north and west, provides for a more logical boundary which would 
provide a continuous link with the site to the boundary changes, agreed by Council 
in July 2014, north of Gillott’s Lane. Officers consider that this boundary meets the 
criteria set out in the terms of reference to take into account natural or man-made 
boundaries that help to define clearly one community from another.

12.No responses were received from members of the public or businesses. 

Final recommendations 

13.The committee agreed to consult on a proposal to amend the boundary between 
Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish. The Henley Society proposes an 
adjustment to the proposed boundary. For the reasons set out in paragraph 11 
officers recommend that the committee amends the boundary as shown on the 
map attached to this report and include the area within the North Ward of Henley-
on-Thames Town Council.

14.Officers consider that the identities and interests of the residents will be more 
closely aligned with the town of Henley than the small rural parish of Harpsden. 
The existing and proposed properties are remote from Harpsden.  The 
development better reflects the more built up nature of Henley in contrast to the 
rural nature of Harpsden. Effective and convenient representation of local residents 
will also be better served by them residing in Henley parish containing all the local 
facilities that they will use.  

15. If the committee agrees to alter the boundary work will commence to make the 
necessary order to bring the change into effect in time for the 2019 parish council 
elections. The committee is invited to authorise the head of legal and democratic to 
undertake this work.

Impact on district and county council boundaries 

16.This proposal would affect Henley-on-Thames and Sonning Common district wards 
and county divisions. If the committee agrees to alter the boundary of the parish 
the committee is invited to recommend Council to agree to request the Local 
Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) to make related 
alteration orders to make district wards and county divisions coterminous with the 
parish change and authorise the head of legal and democratic to progress the 
matter.  

Financial Implications

17.Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, local
authorities have responsibility for undertaking community governance reviews. The
process is prescribed and involves officer time and other associated costs, such as
postage and printing. These costs have been met from within existing budgets as 
will the cost of making the legal order.

Legal Implications

18.The Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee has delegated
authority to deal with all matters relating to parish community governance reviews. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Matters relating to requests to alter district ward or county division boundaries 
arising from such reviews are not delegated to the committee and require a 
Council decision. 

19.The review was undertaken in accordance with the requirements laid down in the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the joint 
guidance on community governance reviews published by the Communities and 
Local Government Department and LGBCE in 2010.

20.The council will implement any changes by making a reorganisation of community 
governance order. 

Risks

21.There is a risk that someone could challenge the outcome of the review through 
judicial review. Council officers have mitigated against this by ensuring that the 
council follows the requirements laid down in the 2007 Act and guidance.

Conclusion

22.The committee has completed its community governance review of the boundary 
between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish. The committee is 
recommended to confirm its draft proposal and transfer the area of land shown on 
the attached map from Harpsden parish to Henley-on-Thames parish and to 
include this area of land within the north ward of Henley-on-Thames Town Council. 
The committee is also invited to recommend Council to authorise the head of legal 
and democratic to request the LGBCE to make related alteration orders to make 
district wards and county divisions coterminous with the parish change.

Background Papers

Report (agenda item 8) to Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee on 
30 October 2017 and committee minutes
Report (agenda item 6) to Community Governance and Electoral Issues Committee on 
14 May 2018 and committee minutes

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Henley-on-Thames Existing parish boundary
Proposed boundary change
Area affected
Planning application
P16/S0077/O

Enlarged
Area

Proposed boundary change in the
vicinity of planning application

P16/S0077/O

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018
Ordnance Survey 100018668

0 250 500
Metres

February 2018° 1:10,000

Map Centre: 474463, 181347 (SU 7446 8135)

Harpsden

Rotherfield Greys


P16/S0077/O

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Community Governance Review - review of the boundary between Harpsden parish and Henley-on-Thames parish
	Harpsden-Henley CGR


